
           
WORK SESSION AGENDA

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
TUESDAY
JANUARY 29, 2019

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

6:00 P.M. 

             
1. Call to Order

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and to
the general public that, at this work session, the City Council may vote to go into executive
session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with the City’s
attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.03(A)(3).

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Mission Statement
  

MISSION STATEMENT
 

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life for all.
 

3. ROLL CALL
  
NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other technological means.
  
MAYOR EVANS
VICE MAYOR SHIMONI
COUNCILMEMBER ASLAN
COUNCILMEMBER MCCARTHY

COUNCILMEMBER ODEGAARD
COUNCILMEMBER SALAS
COUNCILMEMBER WHELAN

 

4. Public Participation 

Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on the
prepared agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and at the
end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone wishing to
comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit it to the recording clerk.
When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be called. You may address the
Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public
Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone to have an
opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting
and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes
to speak.

 

5. Review of Draft Agenda for the February 5, 2019 City Council Meeting
 
Citizens wishing to speak on agenda items not specifically called out by the City Council may
submit a speaker card for their items of interest to the recording clerk. 

 



 

6. Black History Month Proclamation
 

7.   Council Listening Tour - Healthcare Sector
Every fifth Tuesday in a single month, two to three businesses present to Council regarding
their current status and experience regarding operating in Flagstaff.

 

8.    LAUNCH Flagstaff Presentation
 

9.   State of Arizona Legislative Trip and State Legislative Priorities.
 

10.   Discussion of amendment to the Pine Canyon (formally known as Fairway Peaks)
Development Agreement.

 

11.   Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) introduction & Council’s CDBG priority
setting for the next two years.

 

12. Public Participation
 

13. Informational Items To/From Mayor, Council, and City Manager; future agenda item
requests

 

14. Adjournment
 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on                      ,
at                a.m./p.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the City Council with the City Clerk.

Dated this               day of                                       , 2019.

__________________________________________
Stacy Saltzburg, MMC, City Clerk
                                             



  7.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: John Saltonstall, Business Retention & Expansion
Manager

Co-Submitter: David McIntire

Date: 12/20/2018

Meeting Date: 01/29/2019

TITLE
Council Listening Tour - Healthcare Sector
Every fifth Tuesday in a single month, two to three businesses present to Council regarding their current
status and experience regarding operating in Flagstaff.

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Council will be invited to tour the facilities of the businesses that present at the Council meeting. The
tours will occur on Thursday, January 31, 2019, in the morning. Council members in attendance will be in
each facility for approximately 45 minutes.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The City of Flagstaff Economic Development Program works with several local and regional business
and service providers. The Listening Tours bring business and Council together for a greater mutual
understanding of their business sector.

INFORMATION:
Three healthcare providers will present an introduction of themselves and the businesses they represent,
followed by their biggest challenge, and concluding with their greatest recent business success. The
businesses scheduled to present are Northern Arizona Healthcare/Flagstaff Medical Center,
Rehabilitation Hospital of Northern Arizona, and Welbrook Transitional Rehabilitation.

Attachments: 



  8.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Barbara Goodrich, Acting City Manager

Date: 01/23/2019

Meeting Date: 01/29/2019

TITLE
 LAUNCH Flagstaff Presentation

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Information provided for Council discussion.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
  Paul Kulpinski will provide a presentation on LAUNCH Flagstaff's proposal for the City of Flagstaff to
consider financial participation in a pilot program that focuses on early childhood education.

INFORMATION:
The attached handout and power point documents provide additional background in the LAUNCH early
education proposal that provides for full day pre-school focused on four year olds in households with an
income level between 100% - 200% federal poverty level.

Attachments:  LAUNCH Feasability Report
LAUNCH Powerpoint



Expanding High Quality 
Preschool in Flagstaff

2019

A REQUEST TO SUPPORT A PILOT SOLUTION

ADVANCING WORLD-CLASS EDUCATION



Report Contributors

Ramona Mellott, Ph.D.
Jade Heffern, M.A.
Robert P. Hagstrom, Ph.D.
Sylvia A. Johnson, M.Ed.
Daniel Kain, Ph.D.
Rene RedDay, M.Ed.
Paul Kulpinski

Funding for LAUNCH Flagstaff from:

January, 2019.  Flagstaff Arizona

Participating Organizations in this Report
•	 AZ Community Foundation of Flagstaff
•	 City of Flagstaff
•	 Coconino Community College
•	 Coconino County
•	 Coconino County Supt. of Schools
•	 Expect More Arizona
•	 First Things First
•	 Flagstaff Unified School District
•	 Greater Flagstaff Chamber of Commerce
•	 Northern Arizona University
•	 The NARBHA Institute
•	 The Wharton Foundation
•	 United Way of Northern Arizona



1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Too few children in Flagstaff have access to high-quality preschool.  This condition is unsatisfactory and an ob-
stacle for advancing world-class education for every child in Flagstaff.  

Expanded high-quality preschool in Flagstaff, will almost certainly produce benefits that exceed its costs, with 
measurable benefits of increased school readiness, higher academic achievement in primary, secondary and 
post-secondary grades for our children.  This will translate into a higher educated workforce with greater poten-
tial for individual and community prosperity.

We seek your participation in piloting a collectively-funded project that will:
•	 Provide high-quality, full-day, year-round preschool as defined by Quality First

•	 Sites would be expected to be rated at four- or five-stars on the Quality Improvement Rating System
•	 Each classroom would need at least:

•	 One certified lead teacher, or one working toward certification
•	 One assistant teacher
•	 A maximum of 18 students – allowing for a ratio under 10:1
•	 Student progress monitoring using Teaching Strategies-GOLD

•	 Initially be available to all four-year-old children in the FUSD boundary area who live in households with 
income between 100% and 200% of the federal poverty level (FPL)

•	 Begin serving students in January, 2020
•	 Measure improvements in student achievement over time using a continuous improvement model
•	 Provide family engagement and supports that build positive parenting skills

Potential partners could include:

INVESTMENT
Expanding free, full-day, high-quality preschool to serve four-year-old children from families between 100 and 
200 percent of the federal poverty level with coordinated multi-generational family supports, utilizing the wide 
range of services provided by Quality First, and incorporating rigorous data collection would cost approximate-
ly $750,000 per year and serve a population of children who are often left behind.  Participation is a three-year 
commitment starting July 1, 2019 (FY20) with planning and coordination, followed by seating the first classes of 
students in January, 2020.

Joining with the committed educators and citizens of LAUNCH, the City of Flagstaff and Coconino County can 
take a significant step toward building a system that ensures a world-class education for every child in the greater 
Flagstaff area, from cradle through career.



2

Figure 1: (DiDomenico, 2017.)



3

BACKGROUND
Flagstaff has many exceptional programs and organizations across our city and its surrounding communities.  
However, we often work in silos in a way that produces mixed results.  Data show this lack of infrastructure cre-
ates opportunity gaps and disparities that prevent some of our kids from reaching their full potential.

This is why the partners of LAUNCH Flagstaff have gathered since 2013 to find proven strategies that can raise 
the bar and create a culture of world-class education for every child, from cradle through career.

The cradle through career continuum spans from a child’s birth through their retirement later in life.  Along the 
continuum, certain milestones are recognized as important building blocks necessary for a child to grow into a 
civically engaged contributing member of our community.  Experiences from cradle through career are a mix 
of formal academic education with extra-curricular opportunities a child experiences through their family and 
community.  In fact, for a child in the K-12 system, at least 52 percent of their waking time is spent outside of a 
classroom during the school year.  This is why the partners of LAUNCH Flagstaff recognize that the education 
of our children is not the sole responsibility of our teachers.  We accept our responsibility to provide communi-
ty-based programs and supports that are strategically aligned with the preschool through college (P-20) institu-
tions in Flagstaff.

One of the earliest benchmarks in the cradle through career continuum is school readiness. In the greater Flag-
staff area, the time from birth to age five is void of any coordinated infrastructure that can reliably support chil-
dren and their families during this most important phase of child development. If we are to achieve our goal of 
establishing Flagstaff as a place where every child experiences a world-class education, a primary focus on early 
childhood education and development is foundational to our collective effort.

This understanding prompted several members of the LAUNCH Flagstaff partnership to begin an initial discus-
sion on the feasibility and benefits of investing in an expansion of high-quality preschool options available to 
four-year old children of low-income families.  Our initial findings and recommendations are presented in this 
report.

Although there have been no cost-benefit analyses on high-quality preschool in Flagstaff or elsewhere in Arizo-
na, in this report we utilize key findings of cost-benefit analyses of similar programs to illustrate likely benefits 
of expanding access to high-quality preschool in Flagstaff.  This information includes analysis by the Washing-
ton State Institute for Public Policy (WSIPP), as well as a publication on the economics of early childhood in-
vestments from the Executive Office of the President of the United States, and a feasibility study for expanding 
preschool in Tempe, Arizona.

Figure 2:  The Cradle through Career Continuum of LAUNCH Flagstaff.



4

DATA
Children who participate in high-quality preschool programs experience enhanced health, social-emotional, and 
cognitive outcomes compared to those who do not (U.S. Department of Education, 2015). 

14 Number of months
children of low-income 
families enter kindergarten 
behind their peers in 
pre-literacy skills

Children who attend high-quality preschool programs are more likely to graduate from high school, attend col-
lege, and experience success in their careers than those who have not attended high-quality preschool programs 
(U.S. Department of Education, 2015).

This growth is especially powerful for children from low-income families and those at risk for academic failure.  
The need for children to be in stimulating learning environments from a very early age is evidenced by data that 
show early exposure to quality communication are highly important to future educational success.

Figure 3:  (U.S. Department of Education, 2015.)

5%

32%

2%
4%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

3-year old 4-year old

U.S. AZ

Figure 5:  Percentage of children enrolled in publicly funded preschool by age.  (Friedman-Krauss, et. al., 2018.)

39 Arizona’s rank out of 50 
in the number of 4-year 
old children enrolled in
publicly-funded preschool

Figure 4:  (Friedman-Krauss, et. al., 2018.)

These children also score higher on 
standardized tests and display fewer 
behavior problems.  These improve-
ments in children’s development have 
the potential to decrease the need for 
special education placements and re-
medial education, which in turn serves 
to decrease public school costs and 
expenditures (Executive Office of the 
President, 2014).



5

EARLY CHILDHOOD IN FLAGSTAFF

Flagstaff, Arizona is located at the intersection of 
I-17 and I-40, and with an estimated population of 
71,975 (2017) it is the largest city in Northern Ari-
zona. The city is also the regional center and county 
seat for Coconino County, the second largest coun-
ty by area in the 48 contiguous states. 

The Greater Flagstaff Area community contains the 
City of Flagstaff and the Census Designated Places 
(CDPs) of Fort Valley, Doney Park, Mountainnaire, 
Kachina Village, Winona and Bellemont. 
(See Figure 6).  

For the purposes of this report, we use the bound-
ary area of the Flagstaff Unified School District 
(FUSD), which in addition to those communities 
already mentioned, also contains the communi-
ties of Munds Park, Leupp, Gray Mountain, Tolani 
Lake, Happy Jack, and Mormon Lake, among others. (See Figure 7).

Roughly 5,281 children under five-years old live within the FUSD 
boundary (ACS 2012-2016 5-yr).  Of this number, 1,743 or 33 per-
cent are three- and four-year-olds who are living in the boundary 
area. 

The Flagstaff Unified School District is the single largest pub-
lic-school system serving the majority of school-aged children in 
the Greater Flagstaff area.  42.6 percent of children in the FUSD 
qualify for free or reduced-price school lunch.*  Of the enrolled 
Kindergarten students for school year 2018-19, 372 are on free/
reduced lunch, which is 54.8 percent of the enrolled student popu-
lation.

Figure 6:  Greater Flagstaff Area

Figure 7:  FUSD Boundary Area

* Free/Reduced priced lunch qualifications:  annual earnings less than $32,630/$46,435 for a family of four (FUSD, 2018).

READING READINESS

Currently, about half of all five-year old children in Flagstaff are not reaching reading benchmarks compared to 
national norms (FUSD, 2018).  The initial assessment of kindergarten students on their Letter Naming Fluency 
(LNF), and Letter Sound Fluency (LSF) demonstrates that half of our five-year old children are not as prepared 
to read as their peers. (See Figure 8).  

Of these students, those who did not attend preschool were more likely to score below the LNF and LSF target 
benchmarks on the LNF versus students who did attend preschool.  (See Figure 9).



6

Letter Sound Fluency

Above Target BelowTarget

47%
Below Target

Letter Naming Fluency

Above Target Below Target

54%
Below Target

                  LETTER SOUND FLUENCY (LSF)                         LETTER NAMING FLUENCY (LNF)

Figure 8: AIMSWeb Literacy Benchmark Data of Kindergarten Students in Fall 2017 (FUSD, 2018). See Appendix A for data table

64%

56%

45%

32%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

LSF Above Target LNF Above Target

Attended Preschool Did Not Attend Preschool

Figure 9: Analysis of AIMSWeb and Kindergarten Registration Data of Kindergarten Students in 
Fall 2017 (FUSD, 2018).  See Appendix A for data table

Reading readiness matters because a child’s ability to read is fundamental to success in school and life.  However, 
“a child’s brain is not pre-wired for reading”  (Read On Arizona, 2018).   

Developing foundational reading skills requires families, parents and caregivers to engage in quality communica-
tion and singing especially between the ages of birth through five when a child’s brain is developing most rapidly.  
According to the National Campaign for Grade Level Reading, many children of low-income families do not 
develop the basic language skills that support reading success because of variations child rearing skills associated 
with social, economic and educational backgrounds (The 30 Million Word Gap).

Two of LAUNCH Flagstaff ’s benchmarks of progress are school readiness and reading proficiency in the third-
grade.  Reading readiness is fundamental for school readiness. Reading is foundational for the type of learning 
required for becoming an engaged citizen.  Research shows that third-grade reading proficiency is a predictor of 
success in high school, graduation from high school, and attendance in post-secondary training and education.  
Yet, our local data show that we continually fail to fully support all children in preparing them for success in life.



7

Figure 10: (Heckman, J. 2017.)

42 Percent of 3rd grade 
students in Flagstaff 
who are proficient
in reading at grade level

Figure 11: (Arizona Education Progress Meter, 2018.)



8

EXPANDING HIGH-QUALITY PRESCHOOL IN FLAGSTAFF
In 2006, Arizona voters passed a citizens’ initiative that funds high-quality early childhood development and 
health. This created a new state board known as First Things First (FTF). Quality First is one of FTF’s signature 
programs and was established in response to the effort to improve quality and promote school readiness (First 
Things First, 2011). Quality First is a voluntary Quality Improvement and Rating System (QIRS) for providers of 
center-based or home-based early care and education. The Quality First Rating Scale, which measure quality on 
a five-star scale, incorporates evidence-based predictors that lead to positive child outcomes.

Preschool in Flagstaff is provided through the public-school system, private centers (nonprofit and for-profit), 
and some family child-care homes.  The pre-Kindergarten landscape in Flagstaff and Arizona lacks any systemic 
coordination that might help families understand the fundamentals of child development and recognize learning 
opportunities for their preschooler.  This disproportionally impacts low-income families that lack the supports 
available to families of means.

45 Percent of Flagstaff 
3- and 4-year old
children enrolled in early 
childhood programming

Figure 12: (First Things First, 2018.)

In 2012, a collaborative effort between FUSD and the Northern Arizona Council of Governments (NACOG) 
along with several other stakeholders produced a Kindergarten Transition Plan.  NACOG is the primary service 
provider of the federal Head Start preschool program. The intention was to provide a resource for coordinating 
the transition from a preschool or child care setting into Kindergarten, as well as engage families earlier in pre-
paring their child for school.  The Kindergarten Transition Plan was not widely adopted, but still remains a viable 
resource in the community.

Students with special needs are typically eligible to attend district‐based preschools free‐of‐charge. Adding this 
special education and Head Start programs to the percentage in Figure 5 (4%), we estimate 20 percent of four‐
year‐olds are enrolled in a subsidized preschool across Arizona.  (Friedman-Krausss, et. al., 2018.)

In Flagstaff, there are few opportunities for publicly 
funded early childhood programs in the area.  As evi-
denced by the state and local data, Flagstaff ’s children 
are underserved.  In fact, when considering all of the 
capacity of both preschools and child care providers, 
First Things First reports that in the Flagstaff area 
there are two point six children for each space of 
existing capacity. 

The partners of LAUNCH Flagstaff believe that our 
children deserve better.Figure 13: Flagstaff early childhood program capacity. 

(First Things First, 2018.)



9

These funding sources together cannot completely serve the number of students in need of financial support.   

For the purpose of this report and our recommendation, we focus on four-year old children in families below 
200 percent of the FPL and above 100 percent of the FPL.

For the purposes of this report and our recommendations, we consider the following conditions.

78
Quality First 

Scholarships in 
Flagstaff

88
Fully subsidized 

special education 
students in FUSD

100
Percent of FPL or below 
is the qualifying income 

level for Head Start

Quality First provides a limited number of scholarships to tui-
tion-funded centers reaching a four- or five-star rating on the QIRS.  
In the Coconino Region, Quality First also awards scholarships to cen-
ters with three stars.  There are a total of 12 centers that have earned 
a three-, four-, or five-star rating in the FUSD boundary area.  A total 
of 78 scholarships have been distributed to these centers as of Decem-
ber 2018.  According to First Things First, there is currently a waiting 
list of providers desiring to enroll in Quality First, but a lack of state 
resources restricts the program’s ability to expand (First Things First, 
2018).  

In Flagstaff Unified School District for the school year 2018-19, there 
are 10 schools with preschool classes, with 218 three- or four-year-old 
students.  Of these, 40 percent (88) are in special education, with costs 
fully subsidized by state or federal funds.  An additional 60 students 
are on partial or full scholarship through federal grants or Quality First 
scholarships.  The remaining 70 students are covered by family tuition 
fees.

NACOG Head Start, a half-day federally funded preschool 
program, supports 256 children (ages three-five) in the 
Greater Flagstaff area from five sites: 

•	 Clark Homes 
•	 Cogdill 
•	 Federated 
•	 Ponderosa 
•	 Siler 

Early Head Start serves children from birth - three-years of 
age.  Qualification for Head Start programs requires income 
below 100 percent of the federal poverty level (FPL) (First 
Things First, 2018).



10

Our Rationale for Taking This Focus:

•	 The high cost of living in the Flagstaff area prevents many families above the FPL from affording 
high-quality preschool.

•	 The increasing minimum wage in Flagstaff and Arizona are pushing some families above the FPL eligibil-
ity requirement for Head Start.

•	 While many three-year-old children will benefit from full-day preschool, our initial focus on four-year-
old children allows for a more manageable pilot as a starting point.

We determined the number of eligible four-year-old children between 100-200 percent of the FPL and sub-
tracted the number of financially sponsored seats currently available to determine the number of four-year-old 
children not being served in a publicly funded preschool.  Since not every family wishes to enroll their child in 
preschool, we estimated a “take-up rate” based on estimates from other communities doing similar research.  For 
example, Tempe, Arizona in estimating the initial enrollment in their Tempe PRE program used a 60 percent 
take-up rate.  Their actual results nearly matched that estimate.  We feel comfortable using the same 60 percent 
rate for our estimate here.

Eligible 4-year-olds Financially sponsored 
seats currently available

Children not served New sponsored seats 
needed - 60% uptake

Classrooms needed

151 41 110 66 4

From this calculation, the Flagstaff community would need to subsidize preschool for about 66 additional four-
year-old children.  At a class size of 18 students, this would require four additional classrooms dedicated to this 
preschool expansion project.  We assume an operational partnership with the Flagstaff Unified School District 
and utilization of existing classroom space within targeted school buildings.

FAMILY ENGAGEMENT AND SUPPORTS

Families are a child’s first and most influential teacher. Therefore, engaging every family in the educational life of 
his or her child is a necessity for the success of any Flagstaff preschool expansion project.

Fundamental to the family supports needed are information related to appropriate child development, discipline 
and family literacy.  Support for accessing child and family enrichment opportunities would also be appropriate.  
Those opportunities might include:

•	 Adult education
•	 Child recreation
•	 Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) exploration
•	 Arts and Cultural exploration

Leveraging collaborative relationships with cross-sector of community partners will also be necessary to support 
the success of families, their children and the preschool expansion project.  Families may need help connecting 
to resources for meeting basic needs, such as financial stability, physical health, mental health, and special educa-
tion.

Table 1: Analysis of Census ACS 2012-2016 5-year - FUSD Boundary Area, Retrieved: December 7, 2018.
See Appendix B for data table and calculations



11

RETURN ON INVESTMENT

Without a Flagstaff-specific economic im-
pact report available, it is difficult to quantify 
a specific Return on Investment (ROI); how-
ever, we believe the range of $8.60-$16.00 
per dollar invested is an appropriate estimate 
(Executive Office of the President, 2014). 

Approximately half of the ROI comes from 
increased earnings for children later on in 
adulthood (US Department of Education, 
2015).  

$16 Potential return to
Flagstaff per dollar
invested in high-
quality preschool

Additionally, expanding free preschool would produce benefits to the local Flagstaff economy that are not in-
cluded in these cost-benefit analyses.  For example, long term net economic growth in Flagstaff can be expected 
through a more educated workforce with a higher income potential, and the creation of additional teaching 
positions, administrative positions and construction jobs necessary for updating classrooms. 

Figure 14:  (Executive Office of the President, 2015.)

We know that by providing expanded access to preschool, adult family members of eligible children will have 
greater availability and flexibility for working during the day.  We propose that the expanded preschool day align 
with the current FUSD elementary school day, which does not amount to a full eight-hour workday.  In order to 
maximize this work opportunity for families, the Flagstaff preschool expansion project would also need to sup-
port childcare outside of preschool.  

ESTIMATED INVESTMENT AND PROPOSED OPERATION SCHEDULE

Fiscal Year Description Budget

FY20 Remodel, outfit two classrooms Jul-Dec 2019; $133,559

FY20 Open & operate two preschool classes Jan - Jun 2020; 
Remodel, outfit two additional classrooms Jan-Jun 2020

$280,410

FY21 Operate four preschool classes Jul 2020 - May 2021 $714,231

FY22 Operate four preschool classes Jul 2021 - May 2022 $730,268

Table 2:  Estimated Flagstaff preschool expansion project budget summary.  See Appendix C for budget detail and notes.



12

EXAMPLE: TEMPE, AZ
The City of Tempe provides a relevant example of what might be done in a partnership between educators and 
local governments.  This section contains selected excerpts from the Tempe PRE Year One Implementation Re-
port (Harder + Company, 2018).

After a study found that nearly two-thirds of the City of Tempe’s 
children were performing below the widely held expectations 
for reading and language in kindergarten, the City of Tempe 
Human Service department proposed a plan to improve the 
kindergarten readiness of children in the city by expanding 
access to high quality preschool for children in low income 
households. To this end, the Tempe City Council invested a total 
of approximately $6 million ($3 million per year) into the im-
plementation of a high-quality preschool program, Tempe PRE 
(Preschool Resource Expansion). 

Tempe PRE is a two-year pilot program launched in 2017 to increase access to high quality preschool at no cost for 3- and 
4-year old children living in Tempe, Arizona who are at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty Level.  Estimated year one cost 
estimates for implementation of Tempe PRE were a little over $3 million. The City of Tempe leveraged the City Council’s two 
year financial support into an additional $2.1 million in philanthropic and community support. (Tempe PRE Recap, 2018)

Tempe PRE was offered at schools in the Tempe Elementary and Kyrene school districts during year one of the pilot. Within 
these two districts, Tempe PRE was implemented 
in 15 classrooms to a total of 259 children begin-
ning in August 2017.  An additional five Tempe 
PRE classrooms were opened in January 2018, 
for a total of 20 classrooms.  All classrooms were 
rated in the Quality First QIRS with all sites meet-
ing or exceeding the Quality First Baseline Scale 
Score.  

Tempe PRE also included a family engagement 
component that used a Positive Parenting Pro-
gram in addition to other family outreach efforts.  
Childcare was also coordinated for parts of the 
day outside of the Tempe PRE class time to better 
enable parents to work a full day.

The evaluation team examined changes in the 
degree to which students met widely held develop-
mental expectations in each domain across year 
one of participation in Tempe PRE by determining 

Figure 15:  (City of Tempe, 2018.)

the direction in which each child’s developmental level changed from the beginning to the end of program year one. 

As anticipated, at preschool entry, Tempe PRE students are typically below or meeting their expected developmental level in all 
domains. The developmental domains in which the most children fell below widely held expectations at preschool entry are the 
social-emotional (76%), literacy (70%), and cognitive (64%) domains. At the end of program year one, most children shifted 
from performing below their expected developmental level to meeting or exceeding developmental expectations in all domains. 
Most prominently, the percentage of children meeting or exceeding social-emotional and literacy developmental expectations 
increased between baseline and the end of year 1, suggesting that social-emotional and literacy skills may be particularly sensi-
tive to time spent in preschool. 

Exploration of the child and familial factors related to children’s development in each of the six developmental domains showed 
that children’s age and familial income were most often related to changes in children’s developmental levels across the first 
year of the Tempe PRE program. 



13

Figure 16:  (City of Tempe, 2018.)

•	 Younger children (age 3) improved their expected developmental level in the social-emotional domain more often than 
older children. 

•	 Younger children (age 3) also improved their expected developmental level in the language domain more often than 
older children. 

•	 Familial income is related to significant improvements in children’s expected developmental levels in the mathematics 
domain. 

Teachers in the Tempe PRE program participated in trainings, received one-on-one coaching, and engaged in professional de-
velopment (PD). On average, teachers attended a total of nine training sessions during the first year of Tempe PRE. Trainings 
offered included the foundational High Scope Curriculum training; specialized High Scope trainings focused on interaction 
strategies, problem solving, and becoming an intentional teacher; TSG training; social emotional development-focused Arizona 
Early Learning Standards training; and language and literature-focused Arizona Early Learning Standards training. 

Teachers reported that their primary areas 
of concern during their first year of Tempe 
PRE were the qualifications of their in-
structional assistants and communication 
between the institutions participating in 
Tempe PRE. Specifically, teachers cited a 
need for more coordination and clear lines 
of communication between teachers, Tempe 
PRE staff, and school districts. 

Sites will continue to collect data during 
subsequent years of this pilot program, and the 
evaluation team will continue to investigate 
whether the goals of the program are met. 
With additional data, the evaluation team will 
be able to conduct more in-depth analyses fo-
cused on examining student and teacher prog-
ress, growth, and development across time. 

Figure 17:  (City of Tempe, 2018.)



14

CONCLUSION
Expanded high-quality preschool in Flagstaff, will almost certainly produce benefits that exceed its costs, with 
measurable benefits of increased school readiness, higher academic achievement in primary, secondary and 
post-secondary grades for our children.  This will translate into a higher educated workforce with greater poten-
tial for individual and community prosperity.

In Flagstaff, there are few opportunities for publicly funded early childhood programs in the area.  In fact, data 
show that there are nearly three children for every seat of existing capacity in all early childhood programing in 
the Flagstaff area. 

The partners of LAUNCH Flagstaff believe that our children deserve better.

We recommend that the Flagstaff community pilot a collectively-funded project that will:
•	 Provide high-quality, full-day, year-round preschool as defined by Quality First

•	 Sites would be expected to be rated at four- or five-stars on the QIRS
•	 Each classroom would need at least:

•	 One certified lead teacher, or one working toward certification
•	 One assistant teacher
•	 A maximum of 18 students – allowing for a ratio under 10:1
•	 Student progress monitoring using Teaching Strategies-GOLD

•	 Initially be available to all four-year-old children in the FUSD boundary area who live in households with 
income between 100% and 200% of the federal poverty level (FPL)

•	 Begin serving students in January 2020
•	 Measure improvements in student achievement over time using a continuous improvement model
•	 Provide family engagement and supports that build positive parenting skills

After initial start-up, we calculate an annul program cost of  around $750,000 in support of an estimated 70 four-
year-old children in qualifying households.

Based on estimates from existing data and experiences in 
similar communities, we calculate  the potential return on 
this investment to be up to $16 for each community dol-
lar invested.  This means that for each annual investment 
in the Flagstaff preschool expansion project, approximatly 
$12 million dollars would be returned to our community.

Expanding free preschool would also produce benefits to 
the local Flagstaff economy that are not included in this 
figure, not to mention the synergistic aspect of this in-
vestment with other community efforts to enhance child 
and family wellbeing.

Joining with the committed educators and citizens of 
LAUNCH, the City of Flagstaff and Coconino County 
can take a significant step toward building a system that 
ensures a world-class education for every child in the 
greater Flagstaff area, from cradle through career.



15

REFERENCES
City of Tempe (2018).  Tempe PRE Year 1 Recap.  Power Point Presentation.  Tempe, AZ.

Community Research, Evaluation, and Development (CRED), John and Doris Norton School of Family and 
Consumer Sciences, College of Agriculture and Life Sciences, University of Arizona.. (2018). Coconino 
Regional Partnership Council 2018 Needs and Assets Report.  Tucson, AZ. First Things First Coconino 
Regional Partnership Council.

DiDomenico, Ann Lynn. 2017. Expanding High-Quality Preschool in Tempe: Highlights of a Pay for Suc-
cess Feasibility Study. Tempe, AZ. Institute for Child Success.

Executive Office of the President of the United States. (2014). The economics of early childhood invest-
ments. https://www.whitehouse.gov/sites/default/files/docs/early_childhood_report1.pdf 

First Things First.(2011). Measuring Quality in Early Childhood Education. Retrieved from http://www.
azftf.gov/WhoWeAre/Board/Documents/Policy_Brief_Q2.pdf (April 1012) 

Flagstaff Unified School District. (2018).  AIMSWeb Data.  Flagstaff, AZ

Friedman-Krauss, Allison, W. Steven Barnett, G.G. Weisenfeld, Richard Kasmin, Nichole DiCreccio, Mi-
chelle Horowitz. 2018. The State of Preschool 2017: State Preschool Yearbook. New Brunswick, NJ. 
National Institute for Early Education Research, Graduate School of Education at Rutgers, The State 
University of New Jersey.

Harder + Company Community Research (2018).  Tempe PRE Year One Implementation Report. Tempe, 
AZ. City of Tempe.

Read On Arizona (2018).  National Campaign for Grade Level Reading.  Retrieved from http://readonarizo-
na.org/resources/national-campaign-grade-level-reading/

Read On Arizona (2018). Early Literacy Guide for Families. Phoenix, AZ.

The Campaign for Grade-Level Reading, The 30 Million Word Gap: The Role of Parent-Child Verbal Inter-
action in Language and Literacy Development.  Retrieved from https://gradelevelreading.net/wp-con-
tent/uploads/2013/05/GLR-Issue-brief-on-oral-language-research.pdf

Washington State Institute for Public Policy. (2014). Early Childhood Education for Low-Income Students: 
A Review of the Evidence and Benefit-Cost Analysis. WSIPP. http://www.wsipp.wa.gov/ReportFile/1547/
Wsipp_Early-Childhood-Education-for-Low-Income-Students-A-Review-of-the-Evidence-and-Benefit-
Cost-Analysis_Full-Report.pdf 



16

APPENDIX A

2017-18 AIMSWeb Test Data Letter Naming Fluency Letter Sound Fluency

Total % Total %

Students measured: All 750 750

Students below target 408 54% 349 47%

Students measured: with preschool history information 452 451

Students below target: Did not attend preschool 61 68% 49 55%

Students below target: Attended preschool 160 44% 129 36%

Students above target: Did not attend preschool 29 32% 40 45%

Students above target: Attended preschool 202 56% 233 64%

Table 1:  Analysis of AIMSWeb Literacy Benchmark Data and Kindergarten Registration Data of Kindergarten Students in Fall 
2017 (FUSD, 2018).



17

APPENDIX B

DATA FOR CALCULATIONS
Population Under 5 5,281
Population 3-5-Years-Old 2,641
Population 4-Years-Old 1,056

% of Families below 200% Federal Poverty Level 25.4%
Population Under 5 below 200% Federal Poverty Level 1,341
Population 3-5 Years-Old below 200% Federal Poverty Level 671
Population 4-Years-Old below 200% Federal Poverty Level 268

% of Families between 200% and Federal Poverty Level 14.0%
Population 4-Years-Old between 200% and Federal Poverty Level 151

% of Familes below Federal Poverty Level 11.1%
Population Under 5 below Federal Poverty Level 586
Population 3-5 Years-Old below Federal Poverty Level 293

Quality First Scholarships 78
Head Start 3-5 Year-Old Capacity 256
Head Start 1-3 Year-Old Capacity 106
FUSD Special Education Financial Sponsorship 88

CALCULATIONS
Head Start 3-5 Year-Old Capacity 256

(subtract) Population 3-5 Years-Old below Federal Poverty Level - 293
Net Head Start Capacity - 37

(add) Quality First Scholarships 78
Net Publicly Funded Preschool Capacity 41

Population 4-Years-Old between 200% and Federal Poverty Level 151
(subtract) Net Publicly Funded Preschool Capacity - 41

Net Total Target Population of Children Not Served 110
(multiply) Estimated Uptake Percentage (60%) x 0.6

Net New Publicly Funded Preschool Seats Needed 66

Table 1:  Data and Calculations Used to Determine Number of New Publicly Funded Preschool 
Seats for Flagstaff. (U.S. Census; First Things First; FUSD).



18

APPENDIX C

NOTES		   
•	 All costs reflected are for one class with a maximum of 18 students.  
•	 Remodel and playground costs may be reduced if multiple classrooms are set up at a site. 
Operational Costs		
•	 Preschool Teacher, ECE Certificated: Based on average FUSD school year teacher contract = $44,000 school year contract + ERE & 

Benefits $15,847 = $59,847.   
•	 Preschool Paraprofessional: Based on estimated parapro hourly rate of $15/hour x 7.5 hours/day x 185 days (school year + 5 train-

ing days) = $20,812 + ERE & Benefits $11,205 = $32,017 
•	 Instructional Materials: Start up year would include purchase of books, age-appropriate toys and activities. 
•	 Furniture & Equipment: Start up year would include purchase of preschool tables, chairs, shelving, etc. 
•	 Technology: Start up year would include purchase of teacher computer, printer and iPADs for teacher and parapro. 
Start Up Costs	
•	 Classroom, Bathroom & Playground Remodel:  Start up year would include any required classroom updates, bathroom installation 

or remodel to meet lower height requirements, and playground update or installation to ensure a dedicated, fenced outdoor space 
for use only by preschool or kindergarten ages.  Cost estimates range from $25,000 to $40,000.  Followup years include annual 
replacement of softfall (rubber mulch). 

Professional Development & Assessment		
•	 Teacher/Parapro Trainings:  Early childhood trainings through ADE, First Things First, etc. includes registration fees and travel.  
•	 Teaching Strategies Gold:  Annual per pupil cost is $10.95; two-day training for all staff is $5,030. 
•	 Licensing Fees:  Quality First fees estimated.  DHS licensing fees may be reduced dependent upon the location. 
Administrative Support	
•	 .5 FTE Program Coordinator:  Based on 1/2 time, 11 month Community Education Coordinator hourly rate of $24.71 x 4 hours 

x 241 contract days = $23,820 + ERE $4909 = $28,729 (No Benefits). This individual would oversee room remodels and setup to 
meet Quality First requirements, materials purchases and setup, etc. for all classrooms. 

•	 1.0 FTE Program Coordinator: If full-time coordinator is needed in future years, costs would be as follows: 11 month Community 
Education Coordinator hourly rate of $24.71 x 8 hours x 241 contract days = $47,640 + ERE & Benefits $16,577 = $64,217

Family Engagement and Supports		
•	 Outside of Preschool Subsidy:  Based on 3 hours per day at $5 per hour x 18 students = $48,600 per class x 180 school days.
•	 Parent and Family Engagment:  Based on $15/hour x 5 hours /day x 185 days = $13,875 (No benefits)



ADVANCING WORLD-CLASS EDUCATION

1515 E. Cedar Ave., Suite D-1
Flagstaff, Arizona 86004

928.773.9813

LaunchFlagstaff.org



Expanding High 
Quality Preschool in 
Flagstaff
A Request to Support a Pilot Solution

Flagstaff City Council
January 29, 2019



We believe that

• Every child in Flagstaff deserves 
equitable access to world-class 
educational experiences from cradle 
through career

• World-class education is student 
focused and student led

• We have the resources, talent, and will 
in our community to improve outcomes 
for our children.



Cradle through Career Continuum

Kindergarten 
Readiness

3rd Grade 
Reading

8th Grade 
Math

High School 
Graduation

Post-Secondary 
Enrollment

Early Childhood K - 12

Post-Secondary Professional

Post-Secondary 
Attainment

Healthy pregnancy

Stable, involved caregiver

Engaged communication

Appropriate physical development

Language & numeracy familiarity

Appropriate social/emotional skills

High-quality preschool

Understands post-secondary pathways

Strong, non-parental adult role model

Social/emotional competence

Career planning & goal setting

Financial literacy

Participates in extra-curricular activity

Time & stress management skills





Number of months
children of low-income
families enter kindergarten
behind their peers in
pre-literacy skills

U.S. Department of Education, 2015.



Heckman, J. 2017.



Letter Sound Fluency

Above Target BelowTarget

47%
Below 
Target

Letter Naming Fluency

Above Target Below Target

54%
Below 
Target

Flagstaff Unified School District, AIMSWeb Literacy Benchmark Data, 2018.



64%

56%

45%

32%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

LSF Above Target LNF Above Target

Attended Preschool Did Not Attend Preschool

Flagstaff Unified School District, 2018.



Percent of 3rd grade
students in Flagstaff
who are proficient
in reading at grade level

Arizona Education Progress Meter, 2018.



EDUCATION

HEALTH

COURTS

HOUSING

High-Quality Preschool

Finding Common Strategies



Percent of Flagstaff
3- and 4-year old
children enrolled in early
childhood programming

First Things First, 2018.



We Recommend that the Flagstaff Community

• Pilot a Collectively-Funded Preschool 
Expansion Project

• Provides High-Quality, Full-Day Preschool

• Available to All 4-Year-Olds in FUSD 
Boundary Area

• Family Income between 100 – 200% 
FPL

• Begin Serving Students in January, 2020

• Measure Improvement in Student 
Achievement

• Provide Family Engagement and Supports



151

110

66

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Eligible 4-year-olds Children Not Served New Seats Needed

4-Year-Old Children Between 100 – 200% FPL

Less Current Financial Sponsorships

New Sponsored Seats Needed



Potential Partners



Family 
Engagement 
and Support



• Similar to recommendation for Flagstaff

• 15 classrooms in 2017; expanded to 20 in 2018

• Saw improvements in student expected developmental level 
across all domains

• Family income is related to the most significant gains in 
mathematics development

• Includes Family Engagement and Childcare components

• Leveraged city investment into an additional $2.1 million in 
philanthropic and community support



$
Potential return to Flagstaff 
per dollar invested in 
high-quality preschool

Executive Office of the President, 2015.



FY20 FY21 FY22

$134,000 $280,000 $715,000 $730,000

Remodel, 
outfit 2 
classrooms;
planning & 
coordination

Operate full 
program with 
2 Classrooms; 
remodel, 
outfit 2 more 
classrooms

Operate full program 
with 4 preschool 
classrooms 

Operate full program 
with 4 preschool 
classrooms 

Steps to Success



Discussion



  9.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Cliff Bryson, Labor Standards Manager

Date: 01/24/2019

Meeting Date: 01/29/2019

TITLE
State of Arizona Legislative Trip and State Legislative Priorities.

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Discuss and provide feedback on the Arizona Legislative Trip.
Discussion/Direction regarding draft State legislative priorities.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On Wednesday February 13, 2019, the City Council's delegation will travel to the Arizona State
Legislature and other State Departments in Phoenix, Arizona. Mr. Travis will be an attendance on this trip
along with selected councilmembers and city staff.  At the direction of City Council and city staff, Mr.
Travis is currently scheduling meetings/appointments with legislators and state department officials on
important priorities and issues. For your convenience, the first draft agenda and draft of discussion topics
is attached for review and discussion.

At the Tuesday February 5, 2019 regular Council Meeting, staff will bring forth a final agenda and
discussion topics for the for approval. Once approved by council, the discussion topics will be the only
subjects the council delegation will be authorized to discuss with state representatives.

On Tuesday January 22, 2019, staff presented the City’s current state priority list for review and
discussion. At the direction of council, staff created a draft state priority working document based on the
feedback provided by council:
  

Align City’s State Priorities to that of the League of Cities and Town’s Policy Statements1.
Align City’s State Priorities to the City’s Council Goals2.

The current state priorities are as followed:
  

Pursue a partnership with Northern Arizona University to jointly advocate for funding for the Rio
de Flag Flood Control project from the State and Federal government.
Advocate for state enabling legislation for Commercial Property Accessed Clean Energy, or
C-PACE.
Advocate for investing in forest health treatments on state-owned land in the Flagstaff region.
Advocate for change in state liquor licensing laws and establish a process for input to allow
greater local government control in such areas as hours of operation, size of beverages and
saturation. Seek additional funds from the alcohol industry to mitigate the effects alcohol has on the
Flagstaff community.
Advocate for additional funding to the Arizona Department of Transportation to plan, build and



maintain projects  that affect Northern Arizona.
Advocate for 100% funding from the state legislature to fully fund and reimburse social service
providers for the poor and other vulnerable populations, including those with disabilities.
Advocate for the state of Arizona to accept consulate cards as valid forms of identification.
Urge Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) to adopt stronger groundwater
monitoring standards for uranium operations.

 
The draft state priority working document has been attached for further discussion.
The Arizona League of Cities and Towns’ Municipal Policy Statement has been attached. 
 

INFORMATION:
Mr. Richard Travis will be present during the meeting.

Attachments:  State Priority Working Document
AZ League MPS



2019‐2021 
State Priority Working Document 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
New Proposal/New Recommendation 
Revised Recommended State Priority 
Recommendation to removed State Priority 
 
 

 NORTHERN ARIZONA UNIVERSITY  
Pursue a partnership with Northern Arizona University to jointly advocate for funding for the Rio 

de Flag Flood Control project from the state and federal government. 
 

FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT SUSTAINABILITY AND PROTECTION  
Through partnerships and joint efforts with local, state and federal partners advocate and support 

sustained funding and practical policies providing ongoing maintenance of the flood control 
district protecting life and health. 

 
Supports Council Goal #8: “Actively manage and protect all environmental and natural resources” 
Supports Council Goal#11: “Enhance relationships between the city and institutions of higher 
education.” 
Supports Council Goal#4: “Deliver quality community assets and continue to advocate and 
implement a highly performing multi-model transportation system.” 
 

LOCAL CONTROL AND LOCAL DECISIONS 
 

Advocate and support legislation that protects city’s and town’s right to make local decisions for 
their communities. 

 
Note: Supports home rule authority through the State of Arizona 
Note: Aligns with the League of Cities and Towns support for cities and towns having local 
control to make decisions. (Safer communities and sustainable communities when regulating 
short-term rentals 

 
DARK SKIES 

Advocate for legislation to create a Dark Skies specialty license plate.  
 

PROTECTING DARK SKIES  
Advocate for and support legislation to protect the importance of Dark Skies within the Flagstaff 
community through such means as proactive education, collaboration, sustainable partnerships, 

funding opportunities and/or through a specialty license plate.  
 
Supports Council Goal #5 “Revise the zoning code to remove ambiguities, and ensure it is 
consistent with community values and with the Regional Plan.” 



2019‐2021 
State Priority Working Document 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Supports Council Goal #8: “Actively Manage and protect all environmental and natural 
resources.” 
Supports Council Goal #12: “Achieve comprehensive and equitable code compliance” 
 

 COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ACCESSED CLEAN ENERGY  
Advocate for state to enable legislation for Commercial Property Accessed Clean Energy, or C-

PACE. 
Ongoing process and a recommendation to be removed from list 
 

 STATE LIQUOR LICENSING  
Advocate for change in state liquor licensing laws and establish a process for input to allow greater 
local government control in such areas as hours of operation, size of beverages and saturation. 
Seek additional funds from the alcohol industry to mitigate the effects alcohol has on the Flagstaff 
community. 
 
Note: Was a recommendation to remove priority 
 
 

 STATE HIGHWAY FUNDS 
Advocate for additional funding to the Arizona Department of Transportation to plan, build and 
maintain projects that affect Northern Arizona.   STATE HIGHWAY FUNDS 
Advocate for additional funding sources such as a gasoline tax and/or by other practical means to 
the Arizona Department of Transportation supporting maintenance, safety and infrastructure 
improvements and maintaining projects affecting Northern Arizona. 
 
Supports Council Goal #1: “Grow and strengthen a more equitable and resilient economy.” 
Supports Council Goal #4: “Deliver quality community assets and continue to advocate and 
implement a highly performing multi-model transportation system.” 
 
Note: Was a recommendation to remove this priority.  
 

 SOCIAL SERVICE PROVIDERS  
Advocate for 100% funding from the state legislature to fully fund and reimburse social service 

providers.  
Note: Recommendation to keep 
 

CONSULATE CARDS  
Advocate for the state of Arizona to accept consulate cards as valid forms of identification. 
 
Note: Recommendation to keep 
 

 GROUNDWATER STANDARDS FOR URANIUM  



2019‐2021 
State Priority Working Document 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

Urge Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) to adopt stronger groundwater 
monitoring standards for uranium operations. 
 
 

 MINE SPECIFIC AQUIFER PROTECTION PERMITS  
Urge ADEQ to require mine specific aquifer protection permits rather than general aquifer 
protection permits. 
 

SAFE WATER AND PROTECTION 
Advocate for stronger groundwater monitoring standards for uranium operations, require mine 
specific aquifer protection permits rather than general aquifer protection permits and sustainable 
water solutions in the Flagstaff region.  
 
 
Supports Council Goal #7: ” Become a national leader in water conservation in all sectors.” 
Supports Council Goal #8: ” Actively manage and protect all environmental and natural 
resources” 
Note: Recommended to be combined together 
 
 

COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY/DEVELOPMENT 
Advocate for measures that provide cities greater opportunities to enhance economic development, 
increase workforce development, protect shared revenues and increase affordable housing 
development.  
 
Supports Council Goal #1: “Grow and strengthen a more equitable and resilient economy.” 
Supports Council Goal #2: “Support development and increase the inventory of public and 
private affordable housing for renters and home owners throughout the community.” 
Supports Council Goal #4: “Deliver quality community assets and continue to advocate and 
implement a highly performing multi-model transportation system.” 
Supports Council Goal #5: Revise the Zoning Code to remove ambiguities, and ensure it is 
consistent with community values and with the Regional Plan. 
Supports Council Goal #9: “Attract and retain quality staff.” 
 
Note: Aligns with League of Cities and Towns municipal policy statement 
Note: Recommended to be align with council goals 
 
 

FOREST HEALTH  
Advocate for investing in forest health treatments on state-owned land in the Flagstaff region. 



2019‐2021 
State Priority Working Document 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

SUSTAINABLE FOREST HEALTH 
Support and advocate for Bio-Mass solutions and healthy sustainable forest health treatments 
through funding, partnerships and legislation that provides continuous maintenance on state-
owned land in the Flagstaff region.  
 
Supports Council Goal #6: “Take meaningful climate change action.”  
Supports Council Goal #8: “Actively Manage and protect all environmental and natural 
resources.” 
 

 COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES  
Advocate for state funding and legislation that supports colleges and universities. 

 
 

CITY AND EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS RELATIONSHIPS 
The City will advocate for and collaborate with educational institutions on legislative issues and 

funding concerns that provide greater educational opportunities for all citizens. 
 
Supports Council Goal #11: “Enhance relationships between the city and institutions of higher 
education.” 
 

 GUN CONTROL LEGISLATION  
Advocate for stronger gun control legislation and against legislation allowing guns in public 

facilities. 
 

 GUN CONTROL LEGISLATION  
Advocate for stronger gun control legislation and against legislation allowing guns in public 

facilities. 
 
Supports Council Goal #3: “Advance social justice in our community.” 
Note: Was a recommendation for the semi-automatic guns being removed 
Note: Recommended to remain the same 
 

 SWEEPS OF THE STATE AVIATION FUND  
Advocate against further sweeps of the State Aviation fund. 

 
 SWEEPS OF THE HIGHWAY USER REVENUE FUND  

Advocate for restoration and oppose further sweeps of the Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF). 
 

FUNDING SWEEPS 
Advocate against further sweeps of the State Aviation fund and, advocate for restoration and 

oppose further sweeps of the Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF). 



2019‐2021 
State Priority Working Document 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
Supports Council Goal #1: ”Grow and strengthen a more equitable and resilient economy.” 
Supports Council Goal #4: “Deliver quality community assets and continue to advocate and 
implement a highly performing multi-model transportation system.” 
Note: Recommended to combine 
 
 

 STATE HOUSING TRUST FUND  
Advocate for removing the $2.5 million cap, which will allow the State’s Housing Trust Fund to be 
fully funded through unclaimed property proceeds received by the state annually. 
 
Supports Council Goal #2: “Support development and increase the inventory of public and 
private affordable housing for renters and home owners throughout the community.” 
 
Note: Recommended to be kept as is.  
 

 SENATE BILL 1070  
Repeal Senate Bill 1070, which requires police to determine the immigration status of someone 

arrested or detained when there is reasonable suspicion they are not in the United States legally.  
 
Note: Recommended to be kept as is.  
 

SENATE BILL 1487  
Repeal Senate Bill 1487, which withholds shared revenue from cities and towns that are found by 

the Attorney General to have violated  
state law. The goal of the repeal is to gain local control of shared funding. 

 
Supports Council Goal #1: ”Grow and strengthen a more equitable and resilient economy.” 
Note: Aligns with the League of Cities and Towns Municipal Policy statement 
Note: Recommend to keep as is with no changes 

 



R

S

Karen Fann (R)
Noel Campbell (R), David Stringer (R)
Carefree, Cave Creek, Chino Valley, 
Dewey-Humboldt, Peoria, Phoenix, 
Prescott, Prescott Valley, Wickenburg 

R
S

FOR MORE INFORMATION: CALL 602-258-5786
VISIT: WWW.AZLEAGUE.ORG • TWITTER: @AZCITIES

- Senator
- Representative

1

Andrea Dalessandro (D)
Rosanna Gabaldón (D), Daniel Hernandez (D)
Nogales, Patagonia, Sahuarita, 
South Tucson, Tucson

R

S

2

Sally Ann Gonzales (D)
Andres Cano (D), Alma Hernandez (D)
Tucson

R

S

3

Lisa Otondo (D)
Charlene Fernandez (D), Gerae Peten (D)
Buckeye, Gila Bend, Goodyear, San Luis,
Somerton, Tucson, Yuma 

R

S

4

Sonny Borrelli (R)
Regina Cobb (R), Leo Biasiucci (R)
Bullhead City, Colorado City, Kingman, 
Lake Havasu City, Parker, Quartzsite 

R

S

5

Sylvia Allen (R)
Walt Blackman (R), Bob Thorpe (R)
Camp Verde, Clarkdale, Cottonwood, Flagstaff,
Holbrook, Jerome, Payson, Sedona, Snowflake,
Star Valley, Taylor, Tusayan, Williams 

R

S

6

Jamescita Peshlakai (D)
Arlando Teller (D), Myron Tsosie (D)
Eagar, Fredonia, Page, Pinetop-Lakeside, 
Show Low, Springerville, St. Johns, Winslow 

R

S

7

Frank Pratt (R)
David Cook (R), T.J. Shope (R)
Casa Grande, Coolidge, Eloy, Florence, 
Globe, Hayden, Kearny, Mammoth, 
Miami, Superior, Winkelman 

R

S

8

Victoria Steele (D)
Randy Friese (D), Pamela Powers Hannley (D)
Marana, Tucson 

R

S

9

David Bradley (D)
Domingo DeGrazia (D), Kirsten Engel (D)
Tucson 

R

S

10

Vince Leach (R)
Mark Finchem (R), Bret Roberts (R)
Casa Grande, Eloy, Marana, Maricopa, 
Oro Valley, Tucson  

R
S

11

Eddie Farnsworth (R)
Travis Grantham (R), Warren Petersen (R)
Chandler, Gilbert, Queen Creek 

R

S

12

Sine Kerr (R)
Tim Dunn (R), Joanne Osborne (R)
Buckeye, El Mirage, Glendale, Goodyear, 
Litchfield Park, Surprise, Wellton, 
Wickenburg, Yuma

R

S

13

David Gowan (R)
Gail Griffin (R), Becky Nutt (R)
Benson, Bisbee, Clifton, Douglas, Duncan,
Huachuca City, Pima, Safford, Sierra Vista,
Thatcher, Tombstone, Tucson, Willcox 

R

S

14

Heather Carter (R)
John Allen (R), Nancy Barto (R)
Cave Creek, Phoenix

R

S

15

David Farnsworth (R)
John Fillmore (R), Kelly Townsend (R)
Apache Junction, Mesa, Queen Creek

R

S

16

J.D. Mesnard (R)
Jennifer Pawlik (D), Jeff Weninger (R)
Chandler, Gilbert

R

S

17

Sean Bowie (D)
Mitzi Epstein (D), Jennifer Jermaine (D)
Chandler, Mesa, Phoenix, Tempe  

R

S

18

Lupe Contreras (D)
Diego Espinoza (D), Lorenzo Sierra (D)
Avondale, Phoenix, Tolleson

R

S

19

Paul Boyer (R)
Shawnna Bolick (R), Anthony Kern (R)
Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

20

Rick Gray (R)
Kevin Payne (R), Tony Rivero (R)
El Mirage, Peoria, Surprise, Youngtown  

R
S

21

David Livingston (R)
Frank Carroll (R), Ben Toma (R)
Glendale, Peoria, Surprise 

R

S

22

Michelle Ugenti-Rita (R)
John Kavanagh (R), Jay Lawrence (R)
Fountain Hills, Scottsdale

R

S

23

Lela Alston (D) 
Jennifer Longdon (D), Amish Shah (D)
Phoenix, Scottsdale

R

S

24

Tyler Pace (R)
Rusty Bowers (R), Michelle Udall (R)
Mesa 

R

S

25

Juan Mendez (D)
Isela Blanc (D), Athena Salman (D)
Mesa, Phoenix, Tempe

R

S

26

Rebecca Rios (D)
Reginald Bolding (D), Diego Rodriguez (D)
Guadalupe, Phoenix, Tempe

R

S

27

Kate Brophy McGee (R)
Kelli Butler (D), Aaron Lieberman (D)
Paradise Valley, Phoenix, Scottsdale   

R

S

28

Martín Quezada (D)
Richard Andrade (D), Cesar Chavez (D)
El Mirage, Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

29

Tony Navarrete (D)
Robert Meza (D), Raquel Terán (D)
Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

30

MUNICIPAL POLICY STATEMENT
2019



OVERVIEW
Cities and towns in Arizona are home to nearly 80% of the 
state’s residents and more than 90% of the state’s business 
activity. They are the level of government closest to the people, 
most accessible to them and most responsive to their needs. 
They provide the vast majority of first-responder—police and 
fire—services and are national leaders in business development, 
government efficiency and quality-of-life amenities. Arizona’s 
cities and towns are an essential part of the continuum of 
government in our state. 

CORE PRINCIPLES
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns is guided by two 
core principles: 

  1) Preserve local decision-making; and 
  2) Protect shared revenues 

LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES
The League supports legislation respecting the role of municipal 
government and its core principles and opposes measures 
that undermine them. The following policy priorities were 
developed with input from our members and will ensure that 
cities and towns can maintain the high-quality municipal 
government services that businesses and citizens rely on.  

EFFICIENT AND FISCALLY RESPONSIBLE
GOVERNMENT
Cities and towns work to meet citizens’ expectations that their 
local government provides streamlined business processes 
and the best customer service at the lowest possible expense. 
Revenue streams, including shared revenues, must be protected 
and remain sustainable to support efficient delivery of services 

to our citizens. These concepts contribute to the effort of 
achieving this objective: 

• Explore potential modifications to the impact fee statutes to  
 ensure new development pays for the associated demand 
 of new and expanded infrastructure  

• Seek a remedy to the inequitable treatment for tax collection 
 on retail sales by remote sellers 

• Explore policies that permit current Public Safety Personnel 
 Retirement System members to voluntarily convert to a defined 
 contribution plan, providing increased flexibility to members 
 and cost savings to the plan

• Support the creation of a housing tax credit to increase 
 affordable housing and reduce the costs of and demand
 on public services as a result of a lack of housing 

• Permit the use of unspent monies from legacy volunteer fire  
 department profit sharing plans to reduce unfunded liabilities 
 in the PSPRS

TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Tourism is a major sector of our state’s economy and that of 
many cities and towns. Our state’s climate and natural resources 
attract tourists from all over the world, representing a multi-billion 
dollar industry that generates tax revenues and creates jobs. 
Cities and towns support policies that enhance tourism and the 
ease of travel into our state.  

• Support federal efforts that increase international   
 tourism into Arizona.

SAFE COMMUNITIES AND SUSTAINABLE
NEIGHBORHOODS
The protection of citizens, communities and neighborhoods 
is a core function of local government. It is essential for cities 
and towns to have the tools necessary to address nuisances 
without a one-size-fits-all state-level policy that intervenes in 
citizens’ quiet enjoyment of their neighborhoods. It is equally 
important to ensure vital public safety and emergency services 
are accessible and able to respond quickly to residents’ needs.   

• Allow for local regulation of short-term home rentals   
 to protect the residential character of neighborhoods

• Support the appointment of a local government   
 representative on the State Liquor Board to ensure a   
 local perspective on Board decisions

• Support legislation that balances the safety of children   
 in school buildings near airports with the preservation   
 of airports’ long-term viability and economic benefits 

• Examine and explore resources to adequately fund   
 the statewide 9-1-1 system 

• Support a non-discrimination policy that includes  
 gender identity and sexual orientation 

LOCAL ELECTIONS
Cities and towns support policies that allow leaders with 
municipal government experience to seamlessly transition to 
higher office.  

•  Seek equity in state law for city and town elected 
 officials to transfer campaign funds to a legislative 
 or statewide office

Where Local Revenue Is Spent

17%

11%

8%

7%

5% 52%

Population Breakdown of Arizona’s 91 Cities and Towns

Pop.

8m

7m

6m

5m

4m

3m

2m

1m

0

1980 202020001990 2010

City/Town

Unincorporated County

The majority of Arizonans live in 
one of the state’s 91 incorporated 

cities and towns.

FOR MORE INFORMATION: CALL 602-258-5786
VISIT: WWW.AZLEAGUE.ORG • TWITTER: @AZCITIES

52% of Arizona’s 
cities and towns 

have a population 
of less than 10,000

Less than 1,000 | 6

1,000 - 5,000 | 26

5,000 - 10,000 | 15

10,000 - 25,000 | 13

25,000 - 50,000 | 14

50,000 - 100,000 | 7

More than 100,000 | 10

Public Safety | 52%

Public Works | 17%

Administration | 11%

Community Services | 8%

Community & Economic
  Development Services | 7%

Parks and Recreation | 5%

On average, cities 
and towns spend 
over 50% of their 
budgets on public 
safety-police and 
fire departments

More than 70% of 
statewide public safety 
personnel are provided 

by city and town 
employees

29%

7%

16%14%

15%

8%

11%



OVERVIEW
Cities and towns in Arizona are home to nearly 80% of the 
state’s residents and more than 90% of the state’s business 
activity. They are the level of government closest to the people, 
most accessible to them and most responsive to their needs. 
They provide the vast majority of first-responder—police and 
fire—services and are national leaders in business development, 
government efficiency and quality-of-life amenities. Arizona’s 
cities and towns are an essential part of the continuum of 
government in our state. 

CORE PRINCIPLES
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns is guided by two 
core principles: 

  1) Preserve local decision-making; and 
  2) Protect shared revenues 

LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES
The League supports legislation respecting the role of municipal 
government and its core principles and opposes measures 
that undermine them. The following policy priorities were 
developed with input from our members and will ensure that 
cities and towns can maintain the high-quality municipal 
government services that businesses and citizens rely on.  

EFFICIENT AND FISCALLY RESPONSIBLE
GOVERNMENT
Cities and towns work to meet citizens’ expectations that their 
local government provides streamlined business processes 
and the best customer service at the lowest possible expense. 
Revenue streams, including shared revenues, must be protected 
and remain sustainable to support efficient delivery of services 

to our citizens. These concepts contribute to the effort of 
achieving this objective: 

• Explore potential modifications to the impact fee statutes to  
 ensure new development pays for the associated demand 
 of new and expanded infrastructure  

• Seek a remedy to the inequitable treatment for tax collection 
 on retail sales by remote sellers 

• Explore policies that permit current Public Safety Personnel 
 Retirement System members to voluntarily convert to a defined 
 contribution plan, providing increased flexibility to members 
 and cost savings to the plan

• Support the creation of a housing tax credit to increase 
 affordable housing and reduce the costs of and demand
 on public services as a result of a lack of housing 

• Permit the use of unspent monies from legacy volunteer fire  
 department profit sharing plans to reduce unfunded liabilities 
 in the PSPRS

TOURISM AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Tourism is a major sector of our state’s economy and that of 
many cities and towns. Our state’s climate and natural resources 
attract tourists from all over the world, representing a multi-billion 
dollar industry that generates tax revenues and creates jobs. 
Cities and towns support policies that enhance tourism and the 
ease of travel into our state.  

• Support federal efforts that increase international   
 tourism into Arizona.

SAFE COMMUNITIES AND SUSTAINABLE
NEIGHBORHOODS
The protection of citizens, communities and neighborhoods 
is a core function of local government. It is essential for cities 
and towns to have the tools necessary to address nuisances 
without a one-size-fits-all state-level policy that intervenes in 
citizens’ quiet enjoyment of their neighborhoods. It is equally 
important to ensure vital public safety and emergency services 
are accessible and able to respond quickly to residents’ needs.   

• Allow for local regulation of short-term home rentals   
 to protect the residential character of neighborhoods

• Support the appointment of a local government   
 representative on the State Liquor Board to ensure a   
 local perspective on Board decisions

• Support legislation that balances the safety of children   
 in school buildings near airports with the preservation   
 of airports’ long-term viability and economic benefits 

• Examine and explore resources to adequately fund   
 the statewide 9-1-1 system 

• Support a non-discrimination policy that includes  
 gender identity and sexual orientation 

LOCAL ELECTIONS
Cities and towns support policies that allow leaders with 
municipal government experience to seamlessly transition to 
higher office.  

•  Seek equity in state law for city and town elected 
 officials to transfer campaign funds to a legislative 
 or statewide office

Where Local Revenue Is Spent

17%

11%

8%

7%

5% 52%

Population Breakdown of Arizona’s 91 Cities and Towns

Pop.

8m

7m

6m

5m

4m

3m

2m

1m

0

1980 202020001990 2010

City/Town

Unincorporated County

The majority of Arizonans live in 
one of the state’s 91 incorporated 

cities and towns.

FOR MORE INFORMATION: CALL 602-258-5786
VISIT: WWW.AZLEAGUE.ORG • TWITTER: @AZCITIES

52% of Arizona’s 
cities and towns 

have a population 
of less than 10,000

Less than 1,000 | 6

1,000 - 5,000 | 26

5,000 - 10,000 | 15

10,000 - 25,000 | 13

25,000 - 50,000 | 14

50,000 - 100,000 | 7

More than 100,000 | 10

Public Safety | 52%

Public Works | 17%

Administration | 11%

Community Services | 8%

Community & Economic
  Development Services | 7%

Parks and Recreation | 5%

On average, cities 
and towns spend 
over 50% of their 
budgets on public 
safety-police and 
fire departments

More than 70% of 
statewide public safety 
personnel are provided 

by city and town 
employees

29%

7%

16%14%

15%

8%

11%



R

S

Karen Fann (R)
Noel Campbell (R), David Stringer (R)
Carefree, Cave Creek, Chino Valley, 
Dewey-Humboldt, Peoria, Phoenix, 
Prescott, Prescott Valley, Wickenburg 

R
S

FOR MORE INFORMATION: CALL 602-258-5786
VISIT: WWW.AZLEAGUE.ORG • TWITTER: @AZCITIES

- Senator
- Representative

1

Andrea Dalessandro (D)
Rosanna Gabaldón (D), Daniel Hernandez (D)
Nogales, Patagonia, Sahuarita, 
South Tucson, Tucson

R

S

2

Sally Ann Gonzales (D)
Andres Cano (D), Alma Hernandez (D)
Tucson

R

S

3

Lisa Otondo (D)
Charlene Fernandez (D), Gerae Peten (D)
Buckeye, Gila Bend, Goodyear, San Luis,
Somerton, Tucson, Yuma 

R

S

4

Sonny Borrelli (R)
Regina Cobb (R), Leo Biasiucci (R)
Bullhead City, Colorado City, Kingman, 
Lake Havasu City, Parker, Quartzsite 

R

S

5

Sylvia Allen (R)
Walt Blackman (R), Bob Thorpe (R)
Camp Verde, Clarkdale, Cottonwood, Flagstaff,
Holbrook, Jerome, Payson, Sedona, Snowflake,
Star Valley, Taylor, Tusayan, Williams 

R

S

6

Jamescita Peshlakai (D)
Arlando Teller (D), Myron Tsosie (D)
Eagar, Fredonia, Page, Pinetop-Lakeside, 
Show Low, Springerville, St. Johns, Winslow 

R

S

7

Frank Pratt (R)
David Cook (R), T.J. Shope (R)
Casa Grande, Coolidge, Eloy, Florence, 
Globe, Hayden, Kearny, Mammoth, 
Miami, Superior, Winkelman 

R

S

8

Victoria Steele (D)
Randy Friese (D), Pamela Powers Hannley (D)
Marana, Tucson 

R

S

9

David Bradley (D)
Domingo DeGrazia (D), Kirsten Engel (D)
Tucson 

R

S

10

Vince Leach (R)
Mark Finchem (R), Bret Roberts (R)
Casa Grande, Eloy, Marana, Maricopa, 
Oro Valley, Tucson  

R
S

11

Eddie Farnsworth (R)
Travis Grantham (R), Warren Petersen (R)
Chandler, Gilbert, Queen Creek 

R

S

12

Sine Kerr (R)
Tim Dunn (R), Joanne Osborne (R)
Buckeye, El Mirage, Glendale, Goodyear, 
Litchfield Park, Surprise, Wellton, 
Wickenburg, Yuma

R

S

13

David Gowan (R)
Gail Griffin (R), Becky Nutt (R)
Benson, Bisbee, Clifton, Douglas, Duncan,
Huachuca City, Pima, Safford, Sierra Vista,
Thatcher, Tombstone, Tucson, Willcox 

R

S

14

Heather Carter (R)
John Allen (R), Nancy Barto (R)
Cave Creek, Phoenix

R

S

15

David Farnsworth (R)
John Fillmore (R), Kelly Townsend (R)
Apache Junction, Mesa, Queen Creek

R

S

16

J.D. Mesnard (R)
Jennifer Pawlik (D), Jeff Weninger (R)
Chandler, Gilbert

R

S

17

Sean Bowie (D)
Mitzi Epstein (D), Jennifer Jermaine (D)
Chandler, Mesa, Phoenix, Tempe  

R

S

18

Lupe Contreras (D)
Diego Espinoza (D), Lorenzo Sierra (D)
Avondale, Phoenix, Tolleson

R

S

19

Paul Boyer (R)
Shawnna Bolick (R), Anthony Kern (R)
Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

20

Rick Gray (R)
Kevin Payne (R), Tony Rivero (R)
El Mirage, Peoria, Surprise, Youngtown  

R
S

21

David Livingston (R)
Frank Carroll (R), Ben Toma (R)
Glendale, Peoria, Surprise 

R

S

22

Michelle Ugenti-Rita (R)
John Kavanagh (R), Jay Lawrence (R)
Fountain Hills, Scottsdale

R

S

23

Lela Alston (D) 
Jennifer Longdon (D), Amish Shah (D)
Phoenix, Scottsdale

R

S

24

Tyler Pace (R)
Rusty Bowers (R), Michelle Udall (R)
Mesa 

R

S

25

Juan Mendez (D)
Isela Blanc (D), Athena Salman (D)
Mesa, Phoenix, Tempe

R

S

26

Rebecca Rios (D)
Reginald Bolding (D), Diego Rodriguez (D)
Guadalupe, Phoenix, Tempe

R

S

27

Kate Brophy McGee (R)
Kelli Butler (D), Aaron Lieberman (D)
Paradise Valley, Phoenix, Scottsdale   

R

S

28

Martín Quezada (D)
Richard Andrade (D), Cesar Chavez (D)
El Mirage, Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

29

Tony Navarrete (D)
Robert Meza (D), Raquel Terán (D)
Glendale, Phoenix

R

S

30

MUNICIPAL POLICY STATEMENT
2019



  10.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Alaxandra Pucciarelli, Planning Development
Manager - AP

Date: 01/22/2019

Meeting
Date:

01/29/2019

TITLE:
Discussion of amendment to the Pine Canyon (formally known as Fairway Peaks) Development
Agreement.

DESIRED OUTCOME:
To inform City Council of a proposed development agreement amendment scheduled for Council
consideration at the February 5, 2019, Council meeting.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
In June of 2000, the City Council approved a rezoning request (Ordinance 2000-11) and a development
agreement allowing the development of Pine Canyon, which includes a mixture of multi-family, estate
twin houses (duplex units), estate homes, clubhouse and recreational facilities, maintenance and storage
facilities, and an 18-hole private golf course with accessory facilities, located on approximately 660
acres. The primary entrance to Pine Canyon is located at the intersection of Lone Tree Road and John
Wesley Powell Blvd.  The project contemplated by the Development Agreement and as illustrated in the
Concept Plan was to consist of residential development of no more than 1,170 dwelling units, consisting
of 210 multi-family units (Tract 22), a minimum of 125 affordable housing units, 311 estate townhouses,
and 524 estate home sites.

Campus Advantage, a privately held nationwide developer and manager of student housing communities
plans to develop a new multi-family residential project focused on Northern Arizona University and
Coconino Community College students.  The developer proposes "Liv + Flagstaff," a 196 unit, 702 bed
rental community.  Building types will include a variety of townhome style buildings over flat apartments,
cottage type as well as townhomes with tuck-under parking.  There will be a mix of two, three, and
four-story buildings.  The project includes 475 surface parking spaces and 66 carport spaces, for a total
of 541 spaces, which complies with the Zoning Code standards for Multi-family Residential
development.

INFORMATION:
The Development Agreement for Fairway Peaks (now Pine Canyon) was entered into for the purpose of
identifying the type of land uses and the location, density, and intensity of such lands uses, site and
architectural design, and other matters relating to the development of the property as depicted in the
concept plan.  The concept plan identifies that Tract 22, which is the subject of the proposed amendment,
consists of 210 multi-family residential units.  The agreement further states in Section 3(e) that "the
development of the multi-family dwelling units (condominiums) ... shall conform substantially to the
individual conceptual site plans and elevations that were reviewed and approved by the City Council, and



which are filed within the Community Development Department."  The Development Agreement also
provides details under Section 4 that "development of the Property shall be governed by the City's
ordinances, rules, guidelines and official policies controlling permitted uses of the property, the density
and intensity of the uses, the maximum height and size of the buildings..."  Section 7 of the development
agreement only refers to this parcel as consisting of 210 multi-family units.  The inconsistencies are
related to the parenthetical note "condominium" and the conceptual site plan.

Staff identified these inconsistencies when reviewing the development agreement for compliance with
the proposed development plan for Tract 22.  It is Staff's suggestion that the development agreement is
amended to eliminate the inconsistent language and clarify that a multi-family residential development in
conformance with the zoning code is allowed.  Staff is working with the City Attorney's office on the
recommended amendment language and will be provided with a future transmittal.

Attachments:  Original Development Agreement
Vicinity Map
Second Amendment to Development Agreement







































































































































































0 0.5 10.25
Mile

K
Pine Canyon

Track 22 of Pine Canyon

§̈¦40

§̈¦17



When recorded, return to: 

_______________________ 

_______________________ 

_______________________ 

Attn: ________________ 
 

1009.005 / Campus Advantage / Limited Amendment / v8-clean 

 

SECOND AMENDMENT  

TO THE  

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR FAIRWAY PEAKS 

 

THIS AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR FAIRWAY PEAKS 

(“Amendment”) is entered into as of February __, 2019, by and between: (i) the CITY OF 

FLAGSTAFF, an Arizona municipal corporation (“City”); and (ii) TLC PC LAND 

DEVELOPERS, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company (“Developer”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. A.R.S. § 9-500.05 authorizes the City to enter into and amend development 

agreements with landowners and persons having an interest in real property located in the City. 

B. The City, together with: (i) Vanderbilt Farms, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability 

company (“Vanderbilt”); and (ii) San Francisco Peaks Associates, L.P., an Arizona limited 

partnership (“Peaks”), entered into the Development Agreement for Fairway Peaks on September 

5, 2000, which was recorded as Document No. 3063582, Official Records of Coconino County, 

Arizona (“County”), as amended by the Amendment to Development Agreement, dated January 

30, 2007, and recorded on January 31, 2007 as Document No. 3423547, Official Records of the 

County  (collectively, “Development Agreement”).   

 

C. The zoning, development and use of the Property (as defined in the Development 

Agreement) is further governed by, among other documents and agreements, City Zoning 

Ordinance 2000-11, dated as of June 6, 2000, and recorded at Document No. 3056859, Official 

Records of Coconino County, Arizona (“Zoning Ordinance”). 

 

D. Developer is the successor in interest to Vanderbilt and Peaks under the 

Development Agreement and the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

E. The Development Agreement automatically terminated on October 5, 2010.  

General Condition No. 5 of the Zoning Ordinance, however, requires in pertinent part: 

“That all of the terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in the 

Development Agreement be fully satisfied.” 

F. The City and Developer have entered into this Amendment for the sole and 

limited purpose of amending the Development Agreement in order to clarify and confirm 

Developer’s right to construct condominiums (for sale product) and/or multi-family housing (for 



2 

rent product) on the real property described on Exhibit A to this Amendment (“Tract 22”), 

which constitutes a portion of the Property.     

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and 

covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Amendment will 

have the meanings given them in the Development Agreement.  

 

2. Authorization & Authority.  Pursuant to Section 14.7 of the Development 

Agreement, the City and Developer possess the right and authority to execute, deliver and record 

this Amendment. 

 

3. Amendment.  The Development Agreement is amended by adding new Section 

16, as follows: 

“16. Development of Tract 22.  Developer is permitted to construct 

multi-family housing that will either be condominiums (for sale product) or 

apartments (for rent product) on Tract 22.  Developer is permitted to construct 

four (4) story buildings on Tract 22, as long as the additional height (the fourth 

story) is offset by two (2) story buildings adjacent to the Pinnacle Pines 

Subdivision as detailed on the Concept Plan for Tract 22 dated November 29, 

2018, and approved by City staff on January 15, 2019, Project Number PZ-18-

00059-01 (“Concept Plan”).  The City agrees the Concept Plan meets the 

requirements of City Zoning Ordinance 2000-11 and this Development 

Agreement (as amended).   If any other term or provision of this Agreement 

conflicts with this section, the terms of this section will control.” 

 

4. Limited Purpose of Amendment.  The sole purpose of this Amendment is to 

clarify and confirm the scope of application of the Development Agreement to Tract 22 and 

nothing contained in this Amendment may be construed as reconstituting or extending the life of 

the Development Agreement, which automatically terminated on October 5, 2010.   

 

5. Miscellaneous.  Except as specifically provided in this Amendment, the 

Development Agreement shall remain unchanged.    

 

6. Conflict of Interest.  This Amendment may be cancelled by the City pursuant to 

A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 

[Signatures begin on following page] 

  



3 

DATED as of February __, 2019, by: 

 

     Developer: 

 
       TLC PC LAND DEVELOPERS, LLC, 
       an Arizona limited liability company 
 
 

     By: ___________________________ 

             ___________________, Authorized Agent 

       

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

    )  ss. 

County of ____________ ) 

 
 On February ___, 2019, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared 
________________________, an authorized agent of TLC PC LAND DEVELOPERS, LLC, an 
Arizona limited liability company, and acknowledged that he executed the foregoing instrument 
for and on behalf of the company, being authorized so to do, for the purposes therein contained. 
 
 
            
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
     

 

  



4 

City: 

 
       CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, 
       an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 

     By: ___________________________ 

             ___________________ 

       

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

    )  ss. 

County of ____________ ) 

 
 On February ___, 2019, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared 
________________________, the _______ of the CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, an Arizona 
municipal corporation, and acknowledged that he executed the foregoing instrument for and on 
behalf of the city, being authorized so to do, for the purposes therein contained. 
 
 
            
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
     
  

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By: ______________________ 

      City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

By: ______________________ 

      City Attorney 

 



 

A-1 

Exhibit A 

 

(Legal Description of the Property) 

 
TRACT 22, THE ESTATES AT PINE CANYON UNIT ONE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
OF RECORD IN CASE 8, MAPS 92-92H, INCLUSIVE, AND CERTIFICATE OF 
CORRECTION RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 2004-3286375, RECORDS OF 
COCONINO COUNTY, ARIZONA. 
 
SAVE AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION DEDICATED AS S. LINKS ROAD BY RIGHT OF 

WAY DEDICATION MAP, RECORDED AS 2015-3711130 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS. 

 

https://republictitleedocs.etitledocs.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=7906334&amp;DocID=88015474&amp;ImageDocumentID=758791777&amp;HyperLinkGuid=1d79a442-78b5-487c-aaef-8481156242ec&amp;attach=true
https://republictitleedocs.etitledocs.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=7906334&amp;DocID=88015494&amp;ImageDocumentID=758790893&amp;HyperLinkGuid=9a360cfa-2b9e-49db-85e1-c9254341bcc9&amp;attach=true
https://republictitleedocs.etitledocs.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=7906334&amp;DocID=88015492&amp;ImageDocumentID=758792082&amp;HyperLinkGuid=0743e3dd-88c9-415b-8b1e-42f8c585d9b3&amp;attach=true


  11.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Leah Bloom, Housing and Grants Administrator

Date: 01/16/2019

Meeting Date: 01/29/2019

TITLE:
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) introduction & Council’s CDBG priority setting for
the next two years.

DESIRED OUTCOME:
To receive direction on CDBG Council priorities for the next two years (2019 and 2020).

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The City of Flagstaff receives an annual allocation of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) on a “Program Year” basis
(July 1 – June 30). The CDBG allocation amount for Program Year 2018 was $621,718.  The allocation
for 2019 has not yet been published.

The purpose of CDBG is to develop viable urban communities through the provision of decent housing, a
suitable living environment, and economic opportunity, principally for low and moderate income persons.
 The 2018 Flagstaff low to moderate income (80% of the Area Median Income or below) is defined as a 4
member household earning under $56,000. 

Every two years, City Council is presented with the opportunity to establish local priorities for allocating
CDBG funds within the City of Flagstaff community.  Staff will provide an overview of CDBG eligible
activities and discuss the 2016-2020 Consolidated Plan (5-year community needs assessment for CDBG
funding). Staff is seeking City Council direction on two to three new CDBG priorities for the next two
program years.

After receiving Council direction on local priorities, staff will conduct a notice of funding availability
(NOFA) process, review and rank the received applications and will come back to Council on April 9,
2019, with recommendations for funding. This process will result in the creation of the 2019 Annual
Action Plan, a document that will demonstrate to HUD how the City plans to spend its annual CDBG
allocation.

INFORMATION:
REGIONAL PLAN:
Goal NH.1. Foster and maintain healthy and diverse urban, suburban, and rural neighborhoods in the
Flagstaff region. 
•    Policy NH.1.1. Preserve and enhance existing neighborhoods.
Goal NH.4. All housing is safe and sanitary. 
•    Policy NH.4.1. Expand the availability of affordable housing throughout the region by preserving
existing housing, including housing for very low-income persons.



•    Policy NH.4.3.Address accessibility issues and other housing barriers to persons with disabilities or
special needs.
•    Policy NH.4.4. Encourage green practices in housing construction and rehabilitation that support
durable, healthy, and energy efficient homes.
•    Policy NH.4.5. Renovate the existing housing stock to conserve energy and reduce utility and
maintenance costs for owners and occupants.
•    Policy NH.4.7. Enforce compliance with fair housing laws.
Goal NH.5. Eliminate homelessness. 
•    Policy NH.5.1. Provide adequate resources for families with children experiencing homelessness.
•    Policy NH.5.2. Provide adequate resources for individuals experiencing homelessness.
•    Policy NH.5.3. Support and expand programs that prevent homelessness.
Policy NH.5.4. Make transitional housing resources available to populations experiencing homelessness.

Attachments:  CDBG Council Priority 2019



1/16/2019

1

2019 
Community 

Development 
Block Grant 

(CDBG) Process

Leah Bloom, Housing & Grants 

Why are we 
here tonight? •Provide a CDBG Overview

•Review options of how funds 

can be used

•Council Direction ‐ Establish 

2019‐2021 CDBG Council 

priorities 

2

1

2



1/16/2019

2

CDBG Overview

What is Community Development Block Grant?

•Federal grant program administered by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 

•Created in 1974 to provide funding for housing and 
community development activities, serving primarily low 
to moderate income individuals and households.

3

CDBG Overview

As a metropolitan city with a 
population of more than 50,000, 
Flagstaff is considered an Entitlement 
Community and receives an annual 
allocation based on a formula taking 
population, age of housing and other 
community information into 
consideration.

4

Why does the City of Flagstaff receive CDBG money? 

3

4



1/16/2019

3

CDBG Overview

What has changed in recent years? 

•Funding from HUD 
• 2003 highest award = $758,000
• 2014 = $570,941
• 2017 = $599,050
• 2018 = $621,455

•Emphasis on Performance Measures
• Focus is on numbers served & service type provided
• Performance measurements require significant additional data to 
be collected

5

CDBG Overview

Allocation over the years

 ‐

 1.000

 2.000

 3.000

 4.000

 5.000

 6.000

 7.000

 8.000

2
0
0
0

2
0
0
1

2
0
0
2

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
5

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
9

 Allocation (In $100K)

6

5

6



1/16/2019

4

CDBG Overview

How does the City access the funds?

• Annual Action Plan – “What are we are going to do?” 

Due May 2019

• Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) ‐
“What did we do?” ‐ Due September 2019

• Consolidated Plan ‐ “5 year assessment of housing and community 
development needs”  Every 5 years – Recently submitted May 2016

• Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing choice “Fair Housing Plan” 
Every 5 years – Recently submitted May 2016 

7

5 year Consolidated Plan Goals

Activity Special Population
Priority 

Level
5‐year Goal

Priority Need: Revitalization, Public Facilities & Infrastructure

Facility Improvements X H 500 people

ADA Accessibility Improvements X L 500 people

Land Acquisition for Affordable Housing Development L 5 households

Infrastructure for Affordable Housing Development L 5 households

Priority Need: Public Services & Economic Opportunities

Service and Facility Operating Support X H 2,000 individuals

Employment & Job Training Support Services L 5 individuals

Housing Stabilization Services including Eviction/Foreclosure Prevention and Legal Services H 500 households

Priority Need: Addressing Homelessness

Service and Facility Operating Support, including Outreach X H 5,000 people

Increase number of emergency /transitional shelter beds for families X H 20 beds

Increase supply of permanent supportive housing X H 15 beds

Priority Need: Decent Affordable Housing

Owner‐occupied Housing Rehabilitation H 25 units

Rental Housing Construction H 5 units

Owner Housing Construction H 2 units

First‐time Homebuyer Assistance H 25 households

Rental Housing Rehabilitation L 10 units

8

7

8



1/16/2019

5

CDBG Overview

How can the City spend the money? 

The easy answer:

•As the City Council determines based on:

9

•Needs identified in the Consolidated Plan

•One or more of the Primary Objectives

•The National Objective

CDBG Overview

CDBG Primary and National 
Objective

Primary & National Objective

The development of viable urban communities through the provision 
of the following, principally for low to moderate income persons: 

• Decent housing

• A suitable living environment

• Economic opportunity

80% AMI example: Household of 4 income limit is $56, 000

10

9

10



1/16/2019

6

CDBG Overview

Benefiting low to moderate income persons

To be eligible, an activity must qualify as one of the following:

11

1. Limited Clientele

2. Housing Activity 

3. Area Benefit 

4. Job Creation or 

Retention Activities

CDBG Overview

1) Limited Clientele
An activity benefiting persons who are presumed to be low 
income or at least 51% of whom are low to moderate income 
persons.  

Presumed benefit populations include: (HUD’s Language)
Abused/neglected children  Battered spouses
Severely disabled adults           Illiterate adults 
Migrant farm workers  Homeless
Persons with HIV/AIDS Seniors

Past Projects:  

 Operational Assistance for Coordinated Entry
 Homeless Outreach Operations

 Domestic Violence Shelter Rehabilitation
12

11

12



1/16/2019

7

CDBG Overview

2.) Housing Activity 2.) Housing Activity

An activity undertaken for the purpose of providing or improving 

permanent residential structures which, upon completion, will be 

occupied by low to moderate income persons

Past Projects:

• Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation

• Down payment and closing cost assistance

• New housing developments by a Community Based Development 

Organization (CBDO)

13

CDBG Overview

3.) Area Benefit
An activity that benefits all residents in a particular area, where at 
least 51 percent of the residents are low to moderate income 
persons. 

The City has four target neighborhoods – as established in the Consolidated Plan: 
• Sunnyside
• Southside 
• La Plaza Vieja 
• Pine Knoll

Past Projects:
 Capital Improvements in above neighborhoods
 Hal Jensen Recreation Center Rehabilitation
 Arroyo Park and Guadalupe Park Improvements 

14

13

14



1/16/2019

8

CDBG Overview

4.) Job Creation/ Retention Activities
An activity designed to create or retain permanent jobs. A 
minimum 51% of which, computed on a full time basis, involve 
the employment of low to moderate income persons. 

Examples: 
Sharon’s Attic Job Training

15

CDBG Overview

HUD Annual Funding Caps
20% cap for Administration 

2018 total admin ‐ $127,000 ‐ including City 10% indirect rate 
($57,000)

What is an Indirect Rate?
• Allows the City to collect for costs incurred to administer federal 
or state contracts
• Council policy has been to assess the indirect rate on any grant 
that allows this charge
• Calculated annually based on Office of Management 
and Budget (OMB) 2 CFR 200

*City of Flagstaff is ultimately responsible for use of funds, even if spent by outside 
agency* 16

15

16



1/16/2019

9

CDBG Overview

City Contract Requirements 

• Procurement
• Insurance
• Payment Procedures
• Monthly Reporting
• Monitoring
• Close‐out
• Audit

17

CDBG Overview

Federal Overlay Statutes:

• Fair Housing
• Environmental Standards
• Labor Standards (Davis Bacon)
• Testing (Asbestos and Lead) 
• Procurement
• Equal Opportunity
• Relocation
• Handicapped Accessibility

18

17

18



1/16/2019

10

CDBG Overview

Public Service – 15% Cap

There is a high demand for Public Service Projects with limited 
funding available. 

2018 total Public Service awards = $98,500

Examples:  
 Services for People Experiencing Homelessness
 Eviction Prevention
 Fair Housing Services
 Health Services
 Services from Children to Senior Citizens

19

CDBG Overview

Criteria for use of CDBG Funds
• At least 70% of the CDBG funds must benefit low to moderate 
income persons over the fiscal year 

(July 1 to June 30)

• Historically CDBG in Flagstaff serves 100% low to moderate income 
persons

• 1.5 Timeliness Test ‐ Requires timely 
expenditure of funds

20

19

20



1/16/2019

11

CDBG Overview

How are the funds distributed? 

An annual open proposal process is conducted allowing 
community agencies (non‐profits and units of local 
government) to apply for use of funds

This process will begin tomorrow!

21

CDBG Overview

Proposal Process
Public Participation
• Ranking Committee
• 2 public meetings
• January 31 (Proposal Process starts)
• February 28 (Review of Proposals received)

• 3 council meetings
• Work session tonight – establishing priorities
• Work session with recommendations – April 9
• Action item to adopt Resolution – April 16

A draft Annual Action Plan ‐ available for public comment March 1 – April 1, 2019

22

21

22



1/16/2019

12

CDBG Overview

Proposal Process
2016‐2018 Council Priorities (same as 2014‐2016)

1. Neighborhood Revitalization

2. Housing (rental & ownership)

3. Homelessness

Staff Responsibility

• Determine activity eligibility

• Assess activity viability

• Conduct agency risk assessment

• Proposal Ranking Committee with citizen participation

• Weighted scoring criteria

23

Requested Direction – CDBG Priorities

Establish 2‐4 Council CDBG Priorities 2019‐2020

Last Four Years

• Housing (rental & ownership)
• Neighborhood Revitalization
• Homelessness

24

23

24



1/16/2019

13

Next Steps

CDBG/Annual Action Plan Public Meeting

January 31, 2019

10:00am

Council Chambers

For Questions/Comments Contact:

Leah Bloom, Housing and Grants Administrator

LBloom@FlagstaffAZ.gov

928‐213‐2752

Input is always welcome!  Thank you!
25

25


	Agenda
	Council Listening Tour
	LAUNCH Flagstaff Presentation
	Att1_LAUNCH Feasability Report
	Att2_LAUNCH Powerpoint
	State of Arizona Legislative Trip_State Legislative Priorities
	Att1_State Priority Working Document
	Att2_AZ League MPS
	Pine Canyon Development Agreement
	Att1_Original Development Agreement
	Att2_Vicinity Map
	Att3_Second Amendment to Development Agreement
	Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Overview & Establishment of CDBG Council Priorities
	Att1_CDBG Council Priority 2019

